
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Councillor G T Prout (Chairman) 
Councillor M J Davis (Vice-Chairman) 

 
 

Councillor S H Brown Councillor T A Maddison 
Councillor R Bryant Councillor J M Ozog 
Councillor J Burrell Councillor R S L Perfitt 
Councillor P Cutler Councillor D Swinerd 
Councillor J S Hawkes Councillor A Wells 
Councillor J A Hayes Councillor R J Wells 
Councillor K M Kelly  

Councillor E J Lampkin  

 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 

 
Tuesday 17 February 2015 

 
 

at 7 pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 

 
Managing Director 
9 FEBRUARY 2015 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Tuesday 17 February 2015 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Managing Director.  
 

 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 
2014  

(Pages 1 - 
10) 

 

4. Urgent Items   

 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda.   
 

 

5. To consider references from other Committees (if any)   

 

 There are no references from other Committees.  
 

 

6. Regulation 9 Notice  (Pages 11 
- 12) 

 

 To note the contents of the Regulation 9 Notice for the period 27 
January 2015 to 31 May 2015.  
 

 

7. Draw-Downs   

 

 No topics have been drawn-down for scrutiny.  
 

 

8. Chairman's Update   

 

9. Orchard Theatre Accounts 2013-14 Financial Year  (Pages 13 
- 32) 

 

 To note the attached Director’s Report and Financial Statements for 
the Financial Year ended 31 March 2014, for the Orchard Theatre. 

 



 

  
 

10. Princess Park Annual Update  (Pages 33 
- 38) 

 

 To note the contents of the attached Princes Park annual update 
report.  
 

 

11. Dartford Marshes  (Pages 39 
- 42) 

 

 To receive an update from the Council’s Waste and Parks Manager 
following the report to Cabinet in December 2014 [attached]. 
 
  
 

 

12. Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015-16  (Pages 43 
- 46) 

 

 To consider the Committee’s draft Work Plan for 2015-16 as attached 
at Appendix A to the report, together with any further topics for 
inclusion and to set timeframes accordingly. 
  
 

 

 



1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 25 November 
2014 at 7.00 pm. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor G T Prout (Chairman) 
Councillor M J Davis (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor I D Armitt JP (present as a substitute) 
Councillor S H Brown 
Councillor R Bryant 
Councillor J Burrell 
Councillor P J Cannon 
Councillor P Cutler 
Councillor J S Hawkes 
Councillor J A Hayes 
Councillor K M Kelly 
Councillor T A Maddison 
Councillor J M Ozog 
Councillor D Swinerd 
Councillor A Wells 
Councillor R J Wells 
 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor E J Lampkin 
Councillor R S L Perfitt 
 

 
 Dartford Borough Council Officers:- 

 
 Sheri Green – Strategic Director (External 

Services) 
 Adrian Gowan – Policy & Corporate Support 

Manager 
 Alan Twyman – Member Services Manager 

 
PRESENT TO RESPOND TO ISSUES RAISED BY THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 
 Councillor A Allen  
 Councillor A R Martin  
 Councillor Mrs P A 

Thurlow 
 

 
 

 External Visitors:- 
 

 Christine Angel – Dartford CAB 
 David Cheal – Bureau Manager, Dartford CAB  
 Peter Wade – Area Operations Manager, 

Groundwork South Trust 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 25 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
 

2 

 Angela Slavin – Interim Director of Libraries, 
Archives & Registration (Kent 
County Council (KCC)) 

 Sue Sparks – Strategic Manager (KCC) 
 Jonathon White – Project Build Manager (KCC) 
 Mark Salisbury – Senior Emergency Planning Officer 

(KCC) 
 
 

25. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Lampkin and 
Perfitt. 
 
Councillor Armitt attended the meeting as a substitute for Councillor Lampkin.   
 

26. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Burrell informed the Committee that he was a trustee of Dartford 
Citizens Advice Bureau whose annual report for 2012-13 appeared at item 8 
in the agenda.  
 

27. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 9 
SEPTEMBER 2014  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 September 2014 be confirmed as 
an accurate record. 
 

28. URGENT ITEMS  
 
The Chairman announced that there were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

29. TO CONSIDER REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
There were no references from other committees. 
 

30. CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE - FLOOD PREVENTION  
 
The Chairman reminded Members that there had been lengthy discussions at 
the committee’s meeting in February, at the Joint Transportation Board (JTB), 
and with Kent County Council (KCC) about the response to the extensive 
flooding that had occurred on Bob Dunn Way, and in Swanscombe and 
Sutton-at-Hone. KCC had committed to taking certain actions and these had 
appeared on subsequent JTB agendas. The Committee had invited KCC to 
attend its meeting to provide an update on progress on some of these actions 
but KCC officers had been unable to attend but would be attending the next 
meeting of the JTB on 2nd December. In view of this the Chairman of JTB had 
agreed that the Scrutiny Committee could discuss the papers that had been 

Agenda Item 3 Page 2



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 25 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
 

3 

submitted by KCC for the JTB agenda on flood prevention works and gully 
cleansing and these had been circulated to the Committee by email in 
advance of the meeting. 
 
Members expressed their deep disappointment that officers from KCC had 
declined the invitation to attend the meeting to expand upon the limited 
information contained in the papers and to respond to Member’s questions. 
Whilst recognising that attendance at Scrutiny Committee meetings was 
voluntary Members felt that undertakings in the current JTB agreement 
between the Council and KCC encouraged wider contact with the Council and 
that officer attendance at Scrutiny Committee meetings would have been 
within the spirit of this agreement. The Committee felt that this point should be 
drawn to KCC’s attention, particularly as a new JTB agreement was currently 
being drawn up between KCC and the Districts and Boroughs across the 
county, and that the importance of this spirit of joint discussion should not be 
lost.  Members felt that this should be raised with the Leader of the Council 
and the Managing Director if necessary to secure this wider engagement with 
KCC. 
 
The Committee also expressed its disappointment with the timescales in 
which some of the proposed flood prevention works were being progressed 
and in particular the lack of progress in establishing the new pumping station 
to alleviate flooding along Bob Dunn Way, repairs to the drainage system on 
Hawley Road and the general lack of progress in Swanscombe despite the 
efforts of the local ward Councillor and the Town Council. 
 
The Committee noted that KCC would be attending the JTB meeting and 
asked that KCC should be made aware of the expectation that whichever 
KCC officers attended that meeting should have the necessary experience 
and knowledge of the issues in Dartford to be able to respond meaningfully to 
the Council’s concerns. The Chairman of JTB, Councillor Mrs Allen, confirmed 
that members of the Scrutiny Committee would be welcome to attend the JTB 
meeting and that she might consider allowing members of the public to 
address the JTB on these matters if appropriate, possibly via a spokesperson.          
 

31. REGULATION 9 NOTICE  
 

RESOLVED:  
 

That the contents of the Regulation 9 Notice for the period 27 October 2014 to 
28 February 2015 be noted. 
 

32. DARTFORD CAB  
 
The Chairman welcomed Christine Angel and David Cheal from the Dartford 
Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) who attended the meeting to discuss the CAB’s 
end of year report, which had been considered by the Cabinet on 3 April 
2014, and the wider work that the CAB carried out in Dartford. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 25 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
 

4 

Mr Cheal explained the structure of the Dartford CAB. There were two main 
streams of work carried out, the “core business” (carried out by 4 staff 
(2.25fte) plus 5 contract staff running Advice Service Dartford. There were 
also 20 volunteers working 7 or 14 hours per week (one or two all-day 
sessions) and 4 trainees. Advice Service Dartford was funded by the Big 
Lottery but this funding was due to end in August 2015 and would not be 
renewed. The Advice Service had been designed to bring new partners on 
board and had delivered 7 new partners so far. The CAB had trained the front 
line workers and volunteers from these agencies to give 1st tier level service 
advice to filter enquiries at this level and to provide a gateway to the CAB on 
more complex enquiries. The project also involved an element of outreach 
work operating from a number of bases in the borough, including 
Swanscombe, Temple Hill, Darenth and St Mary’s Church. There was also a 
presence on the Tree estate on a pilot basis. Mr Cheal confirmed that once 
the Big Lottery funding ceased in 2015 these services would have to end 
unless funding could be found from other sources. He confirmed that the CAB 
required £160k pa to fund core services and that the Council’s grant of 
£99,750 still left a £60k shortfall to be funded from elsewhere just to keep core 
services going. A further £20,000 pa would be required to keep the outreach 
service going. The CAB recognised the importance of accessing other funding 
streams and putting together strong bids but was competing for funding with 
many other organisations and charities. However the CAB did have a funding 
strategy and over the last 6 years had bid successfully for funding of 
£582,000. If it could not raise sufficient funds to cover core services the 
Trustees would have to determine service priorities but inevitably this would 
result in a reduction to the services being offered. 
 
Members commented on the importance of the services provided by the CAB 
and how it would be a pity if the outreach service in particular could not be 
sustained. It was also noted that a proposal contained in the Cabinet report to 
offer an advisory service based at the Civic Centre was not taken forward due 
to cost (an additional £10,000) and Members hoped that this would be re-
visited if it proved impossible to sustain the outreach service. Members also 
asked about the trend in terms of the use of CAB services and commented 
that the information contained in the “dashboard” in the report seemed to 
indicate that demand for CAB services was reducing. Mr Cheal explained that 
this was far from the case and that the information captured in the dashboard 
was incorrect. This had arisen due to a change in the IT system used by the 
CAB to record service use last year. The previous system, CASE, had 
accurately recorded each intervention whereas there had been a glitch in the 
new system, PETRA, which only allowed one intervention to be recorded in 
each case. From previous experience it was known that the average number 
of interventions per person was c.3.7 as initial contact tended to generate 
more complex follow-up enquiries. This had now been rectified but did mean 
that the information in the dashboard had been under-recording CAB activity 
for a period of time. PETRA also failed to capture telephone enquiries. The 
information contained in the dashboard was sent to the Council’s contact 
officer every quarter and more recent information would have reflected the 
actual demand for CAB services. The main areas of CAB activity were around 
employment issues, welfare benefits and debt management and the demand 

Agenda Item 3 Page 4



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 25 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
 

5 

for CAB help in these areas was increasing.  Mr Cheal confirmed that he felt 
that the CAB worked pro-actively with the Council, as did other CAB’s across 
Kent with the districts and boroughs, and also interacted with Council’s and 
central government to provide feedback and input to social policy formulation. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Cheal and Ms Angel for attending the meeting and 
hoped that the council would be able to continue to assist the CAB in the 
important work that it carried out. He particularly hoped that the CAB would be 
able to find the funding to enable its outreach work to continue. The Chairman 
asked that the Committee should be sent the most recent dashboard 
information. Mr Cheal agreed to supply this to the Member Services Manager 
for circulation. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the work of the CAB in Dartford be noted.  
 
       
 

33. GROUNDWORK SOUTH TRUST / SPARK IT  
 
The Committee received a presentation from Peter Wade, Area Operations 
Manager Groundwork South Trust, on the work of the Trust and its 
commitment to the SparkIT project. 
 
Mr Wade explained that he had been unable to attend the previous meeting 
as he had only taken up the post of Operations Manager at the start of 
September. He explained that Groundwork was fully committed to making 
SparkIT a success and evolving it into a community hub that would become 
the centre of choice for digital learning among local residents. SparkIT had 
forged partnerships that enabled it to deliver innovative training to meet a 
wide variety of local needs. Groundwork had devoted its own resources, over 
and above the £14,000 it received from the Council, into growing and 
changing the functionality of SparkIT over the last year and on working with 
other partners to ensure that it could continue to remain current and to deliver 
on new needs. SparkIT was trying to do the best it could with limited 
resources. It had run a twice weekly Job Club with input from Job Centre Plus 
in both Dartford and Gravesham.    Currently this assisted with developing 
basic computer and online computing skills and offered assistance with 
searching for jobs. Apprenticeship training was also being provided once a 
week. These services were provided on a walk-in basis. 
 
The current staffing consisted of 3 volunteers and a new Centre Manager 
following the departure of the previous manager. This was seen as an 
opportunity to look to develop the services on offer, to re-brand and to 
become a community hub with greater emphasis on outreach work, 
apprenticehip and volunteer recruitment and upskilling. In preparation for this 
Groundwork had invested in updating its IT facilities to support more “self-
help” and online services. There had been a positive response to these 
aspirations from the Gravesham Council Tenants Forum and by attending the 

Agenda Item 3Page 5



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 25 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
 

6 

Tinder Foundation’s Digital Inclusion conference many new links had been 
established with outside providers and community organisations. The aim was 
to expand the number of partnerships and to explore potential expansion 
through delivering training off-site at social housing and within schools. 
SparkIT was also aiming to broaden its training offering to include more 
advanced IT courses and accreditations and pursing digital inclusion. Work 
had also been done to link SparkIT with existing programmes such as the 
Green Team and Kent Sheds project and over Christmas would be promoting 
a new Christmas Club to show residents how the digital world could help them 
to achieve their goals. 
 
Members welcomed the valuable work carried out by SparkIT and felt that it 
was an important strategic facility within the Borough and a key enabler for 
the development of employment skills and wider IT skills for those residents 
most in need of these opportunities. Whilst welcoming the drive and 
innovation described some concern was expressed at the direction of travel 
towards making the Centre a community hub as it was felt that this could 
distract from the core activity of providing employment and IT training for local 
people. It was also noted that the Cabinet report had stated that, whilst targets 
for 2013 had been met, 2014 would be a challenging year and an explanation 
was sought for what this had meant in practice and how this would translate 
into targets for 2015. 
 
Mr Wade explained that currently SparkIT received funding from the Council 
for one person working three days each week and there would always be a 
focus on promoting employment and IT skills. However the aspiration was to 
operate the Centre for five days and in order to do this SparkIT needed to 
attract additional funding and one way of doing this was to offer more services 
to the community.  2014 had been challenging with a change of Centre 
Manager and improvements to equipment and infrastructure being carried out 
which should bear fruit in 2015. The services delivered during 2014 were not 
poor, and were better than the figures for 2013, but the aspiration was to be 
better. Currently the Centre was offering sessions three days a week with a 
mixed take-up with an average of 12-15 people attending each morning or 
afternoon session. The aspiration was to offer sessions five days a week and 
to fill all places at each session to help as many people as possible.      
 
Members noted that there were some significant developments likely to take 
place in Swanscombe in the near future and it was important to do as much 
as possible to enhance the employment opportunities for local people arising 
from these. The Committee asked for details of the number of courses and 
accreditations delivered in 2014 to be sent to them for comparison with the 
figures for 2013 and it was agreed that these would be circulated to members 
of the Committee.  
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Wade for attending the meeting and said that he 
looked forward to receiving the figures  for 2014 and would like to extend an 
invitation to him to attend a future meeting of the Committee to discuss the 
plans for SparkIT. 
 

Agenda Item 3 Page 6



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 25 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
 

7 

 RESOLVED: 
 
That the presentation be noted.          
 

34. KCC REFURBISHMENT OF DARTFORD LIBRARY / IMPLICATIONS FOR 
DARTFORD MUSEUM  
 
The Chairman welcomed Angela Slaven  (Interim Director of Libraries, 
Archives & Registration), Sue Sparks (Strategic Manager) and Jonathon 
White (Project Build Manager) from Kent County Council (KCC) who were 
attending to present an update on the proposals for Dartford Library and 
Museum following the public consultation exercise carried out as part of the 
wider review of library services in Kent. 
 
Sue Sparks explained that the original aims of KCC’s proposals were to open 
up access between the Library and the Museum to provide a single level 
entrance, to encourage working together to provide a single heritage offering , 
to look at wider community use of the buildings by opening up more back-
room space, to generate income and to carry out some general repairs. These 
proposals had been put out to public consultation, the results of which would 
be published on 22nd December. There had been 349 responses to the 
consultation either as hard copy or online. Of these 57% were in favour of all 
of the proposals, around 20% (67 people) were opposed to all of the 
proposals and 23% were in favour of some of the proposals and had made 
other suggestions. These suggestions had varied greatly but included 
providing more space for young people to study, different colour schemes and 
furnishings, and the book-stock offering. The book-stock was already being 
reviewed with a view to digitising some of the stock, to reduce some less 
utilised stock, to free-up space for more children’s books and to re-consider 
how local studies stock should best be managed. 
 
Some concern was expressed that the review could adversely impact upon 
the stock held on local history but it was explained that it was only proposed 
that stock held by the library which related to other geographical areas would 
be removed and relocated to libraries in those areas whilst the remainder 
would be maintained by a mixture of digitisation and retention on-site. It was 
confirmed however that the press cuttings service that had preserved articles 
from local publications would not be re-instated as this information was now 
more widely available on-line.    The comments made by the 20% of 
respondents who had opposed all of the proposals were currently being 
examined but it was important to recognise the need to modernise the library 
service to ensure that it could deliver 21st century expectations whilst 
respecting the character and history of the building. This included opening the 
building up for wider community uses. Where this had been done at 
Edenbridge the use of the Centre had increased by 75%, although it was 
admitted that the Edenbridge Centre was a very different proposition. 
 
Members asked whether Library staff had had any input to the proposals and 
whether they had been consulted. It was confirmed that one member of the 
Library staff had been on the Consultation Team and that all staff had been 

Agenda Item 3Page 7



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 25 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
 

8 

briefed and would be receiving a further briefing the next day. Members also 
felt that the consultation may have suffered from the fact that a planning 
application had been made by KCC’s development contractor in advance of 
the consultation and it was admitted that this had probably been a mistake as 
it created the impression that decisions had already been made. Members 
also asked whether there were likely to be any changes to the overall ethos of 
the proposals as a result of the consultation. It was re-iterated that the views 
expressed during the consultation varied greatly but that the aim was to bring 
the building into wider community use. For example there had been mixed 
views about the value of the gallery area in the Museum with some people 
liking the existing arrangements and others thinking that it was underused. In 
this case the solution was likely to be finding a way to bring the gallery 
offering into the library to release some of the gallery area for other uses. It 
was confirmed that the outcome of the consultation would not be published 
until 22nd December and that final plans and decisions would not be taken 
until the New Year but there were no firm dates yet. 
 
In terms of the proposals to create an entrance between the Museum and the 
Library this was seen as the first stage in opening up and modernising the 
museum and also in providing a more joined-up local history offering by also 
making some of the museum materials part of the wider dispalys in the Library 
and allowing more flexibility in the use of volunteers. 
 
The Chairman thanked the officers from KCC for attending and providing a 
valuable update on the proposals. He also expressed the view that the 
Museum housed  an impressive photo archive and that this could be made 
more accessible by digitisation. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the update on the proposals for the refurbishment of Dartford Library by 
Kent County Council be noted.              
 

35. EMERGENCY PLANNING AND BUSINESS CONTINGENCY 
RESPONSIBILITIES AND ARRANGEMENTS  
 
The Chairman welcomed Mark Salisbury, Senior Emergency Planning Officer 
at Kent County Council (KCC), to the meeting and advised Members that Mr 
Salisbury would be joining Dartford as the Enforcement and Regulatory 
Manager in the New Year. The Chairman explained that he had asked for an 
update on the Council’s emergency planning readiness and resilience in view 
of the difficulties encountered last year due to bad weather and concerns 
about the co-ordination between Dartford and KCC. 
 
Mr Salisbury explained that he was looking forward to joining the Council as 
Dartford’s Community Safety Unit was an exemplar for successful multi-
agency working. Mr Salisbury stressed that Dartford had a record of robust 
emergency planning and business continuity arrangements. The Council was 
a category 1 provider under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, which had been 
introduced in response to concerns about poor co-ordination by agencies to 

Agenda Item 3 Page 8



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 25 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
 

9 

the foot-and-mouth crisis. This put the Council on the same footing as the 
Police, Fire and Rescue Service, the Ambulance Service, and the County 
Council and placed certain additional duties on the Council in terms of 
carrying out risk assessments, emergency planning, business continuity 
management, informing and alerting the public, information sharing and co-
operation. Although the Police would take the lead in any emergency there 
were arrangements for integrated emergency management by the main 
agencies at strategic, tactical and operational levels. The strategic 
management (Gold command) would be based at Maidstone, tactical 
management (Silver command) at Medway police station and operational 
management (Bronze command) from the relevant district Council’s 
emergency control room.   These arrangements had been called into action 
during the last year during emergencies such as the Isle of Sheppey Crossing 
crash and the East Coast flooding and plans were also in place for other 
emergency situations such as the possibility of an ebola outbreak. 
 
Members asked why the response to flooding on Bob Dunn Way earlier in the 
year had been so poor and why it had taken so long to deal with the flooding. 
Mr Salisbury explained that whilst the flooding had proved very disruptive for 
Dartford it was not an emergency as such as it did not threaten serious 
damage to human welfare, the environment or security. Emergency services 
were also stretched at the time dealing with emergency situations such as the 
threat of flooding to 640 homes in the Tonbridge and Malling area and the 
threat of serious flooding in the Loose Valley. It was accepted that 
communication between the local authorities could have been better during 
this situation however Dartford was well represented on the Kent Resilience 
Forum and where there had been other incidents, such as the danger of a 
property collapsing in Mount View Road, the out-of-hours arrangements 
between Dartford  and KCC had worked very well.  Having said this, he felt 
that there had been a lack of appreciation by KCC and the fire and police 
services about the severity of the problems caused by the flooding of Bob 
Dunn Way. The timing of the flooding, across the Christmas period, had also 
been unfortunate and had revealed a lack of senior staff being available at 
KCC to deal with these issues. KCC had learnt from this and senior staff 
would be receiving training and cover would be in place in future years. 
Members appreciated that the flooding may not have qualified as an 
emergency per se but that it had been a serious issue for the people of 
Dartford and due to the length of time for which the flooding persisted it had 
knock on effects which could have impacted on air quality and health. 
 
In response to a question from a Member Mr Salisbury confirmed that robust 
emergency plans were in place for the Bluewater Shopping Centre and that 
Dartford benefitted from the emergency planning arrangements which had 
been developed in preparation for the 2012 Olympics and which were still 
relevant. The Committee also asked how the Parish/Town council’s would 
feature in future emergency planning arrangements. Mr Salisbury explained 
that he had been doing work with the Kent Association of Local Council’s 
(KALC) and the Environment Agency with a view to making the Parishes more 
resilient so that they had more capability on the ground. Currently only 40 out 
of 300+ parishes in Kent had their own Parish Emergency Plan in place 

Agenda Item 3Page 9



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 25 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
 

10 

despite the fact that there was a simple template available for use. Members 
welcomed closer interaction with the Parishes over emergency planning but 
stressed the need to focus more widely than KALC as only one of Dartford’s 
parishes actually belonged to the Association.    
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Salisbury for his presentation and welcomed closer 
working with KCC and the Parish and Town Councils. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the presentation be noted.     
  
 
 
 

36. WORK PLAN 2014-15  
 
The Committee reviewed its Work Plan for 2014-15 and had no items to add.
  

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the contents of the Scrutiny Committee Work plan 2014-15 be noted.  
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 9.37 pm 

 
  

 
 

Councillor G T Prout 
CHAIRMAN 

Agenda Item 3 Page 10



27 January 2015 - 31 May 2015 
 

1 of 2 

 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LIST OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS – REGULATION 9 NOTICE 
 
This document lists all key decisions due  to be taken  in the forthcoming 4 months in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. It also lists and contains particulars of 
any items where it is likely that the public will be excluded because consideration of the matter in public would disclose confidential of 
exempt information. The reasons for going into closed session are given in each case. An updated list will be published monthly. 
 
All decisions are made by Cabinet collectively. 
 
Cabinet Members: 
 
Councillor J A Kite, MBE, Portfolio: Leader & Overall Strategy 
Councillor A R Martin, Portfolio: Deputy Leader, Strategic Council Finances & Strategic Service Provision 
Councillor P F Coleman, Portfolio: Front Line Services, Customer Champion & Housing 
Councillor A R Lloyd, Portfolio: Environment, Leisure & Facilities 
Councillor C J Shippam, Portfolio: Town Centre 
Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow, Portfolio: Events, Attractions & Heritage 
 
All of the reports contained in this list, where open to the public, will be published on the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk at least 5 
clear days before the day of the meeting or, if later, whenever they become available. All reports provide details of any background 
documents which have been relied upon to a material degree during production of the report, or relied upon when formulating 
recommendations or options for decision. Hard copies or extracts from these reports can be obtained on request by emailing 
memberservices@dartford.gov.uk. 
 
This notice supersedes all previous notices. 

A
genda Item

 6
P

age 11



 

2 of 2 
 

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED 

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM 

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR 

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified) 

New Build Housing Project Update 
 
This report provides an update on 
the progress being made relating to 
the Council’s new build HRA housing 
project. It will contain both an update 
on the Planning applications for the 
three sites and the procurement 
process being followed to build the 
housing units. The report will also 
detail the tender returns and provide 
the basis for a recommendation to 
appoint a contractor to build the 
housing units. 
 

Cabinet 
5 Mar 2015 
 

  
 

Peter Dosad, Head of Housing 
Tel: 01322 343327 
peter.dosad@dartford.gov.uk 

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended). 

A
genda Item

 6
P

age 12



Agenda Item 9Page 13



Agenda Item 9 Page 14



Agenda Item 9Page 15



Agenda Item 9 Page 16



Agenda Item 9Page 17



Agenda Item 9 Page 18



Agenda Item 9Page 19



Agenda Item 9 Page 20



Agenda Item 9Page 21



Agenda Item 9 Page 22



Agenda Item 9Page 23



Agenda Item 9 Page 24



Agenda Item 9Page 25



Agenda Item 9 Page 26



Agenda Item 9Page 27



Agenda Item 9 Page 28



Agenda Item 9Page 29



Agenda Item 9 Page 30



Agenda Item 9Page 31



Agenda Item 9 Page 32



 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

17 FEBRUARY 2015  
 

PRINCES PARK 

 

 
Ward: Brent 
 
1. Summary 

 

1.1 The Chairman has requested an update on the lease and Service Level                
Agreements between the Council and Dartford Football Club.  

 

2.  RECOMMENDATION 

     That the contents of the report be noted. 

 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1 Lease 
 
The lease for Dartford Football Club (covering the whole of Princes Park with 
the exception of the mini pitches) was completed in March 2012 and will 
expire on 31 January 2034. 
 
3.2 Service Level Agreement for community facilities (excluding the mini 
pitches) 
 
The initial SLA was signed alongside the lease in March 2012. The SLA was 
for the period February 2009 to March 2012. 
 
A new five year agreement is now in place which ends in March 2017.  Under 
the agreement, the contribution made by the Council reduces from £135,000 
to £90,000 by 2015/16.  
 
Under the terms of the SLA, Dartford Football Club is required: 
 

• To provide community access to the golf course for no less than 300 
days each year. This excludes days when the golf course cannot be 
used due to bad weather or other exceptional circumstances outside 
the control of Dartford Football Club. The dates and times of availability 
are to be determined by Dartford Football Club in consultation with the 
Council. 

 

• To provide community access to the training pitch for a minimum of two 
weekday evenings for each week of each year. For this purpose, 
“community” excludes teams in any way associated with Dartford 
Football Club. 

 

Agenda Item 10Page 33



 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

17 FEBRUARY 2015  
 

• To provide general community access to the bar and function facilities 
and advertise availability. 

 

• To promote (and support the Council in) sports development generally, 
by providing specialised training and development courses. This is 
subject to normal commercial considerations 

 
The following provide some details of usage: 
 
Gate attendances: July 2014 to January 2015: 23,030 - includes 4,070 at pre-
season friendlies. 
 
Golf usage: 1,318 pay on gate rounds and 1,041 rounds by members/loyalty 
card holders from April 1st 2014 to January 28th 2015. 
 
Dartford Football Club has continued to run a loyalty scheme where golfers 
pay for 5 rounds of golf and get their 6th round free. The golf course is 
advertised on the Dartford Football Club Website, Facebook and Twitter 
pages, periodically in the programme and has been advertised in local 
magazine Dartford Living. An Advertising Board has also been erected pitch 
side within the stadium to further promote the Golf Course.  
 
As of July 2013, Dartford Football Club has had a ground share agreement 
with Greenwich Borough FC. This agreement has now been extended to a 
two year contract meaning that they will play on alternate Saturday afternoons 
and Tuesday evenings when Dartford Football Club are not until the end of 
the 2015/16 season.  
 
The club run 2 Academy teams in which the players have the opportunity to 
progress into our First Team. Dartford Football Club also runs 35 youth teams 
across various sections: 
U7s – U18s in the Junior Section 
U16s - U18s in the Kent Youth League 
U8s – U16s in the Pre-Academy 
 
In October 2014, Dartford Football Club invited a number of local primary 
schools football teams, both boys and girls, to take part in a tournament 
throughout the day.  
 
Along with the football, Princes Park is also regularly used by: 
 
Princes Park Catering/BiteMe Catering regularly hold functions in the two 
suites upstairs where those attending are able to look through the windows 
into the stadium, along with seeing promotional content displayed around the 
stadium. Their regular hirers include: 
 
Baby Ballet every Monday; classes are held from 9am til lunch time 
 
Tango and Salsa Dance lessons every Wednesday evening 

Agenda Item 10 Page 34



 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

17 FEBRUARY 2015  
 
 
Monthly Business Network events are held including conferences and 
breakfast meetings 
  
Seeds Cycling Club continues to meet at Princes Park Stadium, the starting 
point for the club’s rides, approximately 3 times a week throughout the year.  
 
Dartford Road Runners continue to use the facilities at Princes Park 3 times  a 
week. They hold periodical events at the stadium including Les Witton 10k 
road race.  
 
New to the club: 
 
Included in the Dartford Football Club Pre-Academy this season is 3 girls 
teams at ages U13-U15 which will continue to develop into older age groups 
and introduce younger girls teams as the seasons progress.  
 
Millwall Football Club has been using Princes Park Stadium to play their U21 
fixtures. 
 
In July 2014, a local charity hired the Stadium for their Tottenham Hotspurs 
stars and celebrities versus Arsenal Foundation fixture. The game was in aid 
of the Stacey Mowle Appeal, a little girl who is suffering with Neuroblastoma 
and needs £500,000 for her required treatment abroad. Princes Park 
welcomed many well-known faces on the day of the match such as Linda 
Robson, Tamera Foster, Micky Hazard, Terry Alderton, Sam Callahan and 
Tommy Walsh to name a few.  
 
Dartford Football Club were approached by Premier League and asked if they 
could use Princes Park Stadium for their newly established International Cup. 
In October 2014 the club hosted Schalke U21s v Benfica U21s and in January 
2015 hosted Celtic U21s v Villarreal U21s. They are keeping Princes Park in 
mind for any future fixtures that may arise. 
 
3.3 Mini Pitches 
 
The service level agreement for the mini pitches was completed on 5 
September 2011. It lasted for one year and was extended for a further year on 
the same terms. Because of the grant from the Football Foundation, which 
part funded the build of the mini pitches, the Council has to account for all 
income and expenditure.  
 
A new agreement was authorised by Cabinet on 3 April 2014(Min.No 148). 
The main changes related to the financial arrangements with the other 
provisions remaining. 

Under the SLA Dartford Football Club is required (in summary): 
 

Agenda Item 10Page 35



 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

17 FEBRUARY 2015  
 

• To provide all day to day management of the two mini soccer 
pitches. 

 

• To actively market and promote the facilities and opportunities. 
 

• To provide adequate ground keeping functions. 
 
Under the SLA: 
 

• An annual fee of £20,000 subject to CPI each year (based on previous 
September), rounded down to a whole amount. 

• Pitch fees to increase by CPI, rounded down to a whole amount (or 
alternative if both the Council and Dartford Football Club agree) at the 
start of each football season.  

• 15% of income (net of VAT) to be paid into a refurbishment reserve; 
subject to this producing no worse than a break even position. 

• Any surplus to be shared 50/50 between the Council and Dartford 
Football Club. 

Mini Pitch bookings have shown a further increase on the 2013 figures, with 
increases each quarter. Bookings reached a value of £11,561 for October-
December 2014 compared to £9,487 in the same quarter for last year. This is 
due to an increase in block bookings and new hirers using the facility whilst 
there has been a decrease in the requirement for ‘one off casual’ bookings. 
Hirers feel that they are being offered an excellent facility and value for 
money. 
 
Looking forward, the income will plateau as the mini pitches are near to full 
capacity for evening hire between 6pm to 10pm. There are regular enquiries 
being received asking to be informed if a cancellation becomes available.  
 
The focus and priority of the mini pitches is to cater for juniors and youths, 
and as a result a waiting list has been created of male adult and veteran 
teams wishing to use the facilities.  
 
Advertising for the pitches has been distributed via large posters in the Civic 
Centre/Princes Park; Council poster sites in the town centre and match day 
programmes; Summer Sizzler brochure; and via the Council and Dartford 
Football Club websites. As part of the ongoing marketing for the pitches, 
Dartford Football Club have added  mailshot details to their database contacts 
and have continued to promote on Facebook and Twitter.  
 
AFC Halls have held their second mini holiday camp in the Easter break. The 
holiday club focuses on technique, instruction, team spirit, fun and fitness, 
including a fun work shop at the start of the session and football quiz at the 
end of each day. 
 

Agenda Item 10 Page 36



 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

17 FEBRUARY 2015  
 
Dartford Football Club was approached again to host Bexley Invicta Spring 
Tournament. Invicta FC is open to all, regardless of sexuality, ability or 
experience and offers the opportunity for players to play football in a gay 
friendly setting.  
 
Dartford Football Club Youth and pre-academy continue to grow, with a 
number of girls’ teams joining under the club’s umbrella.  
 
Kent FA district teams sessions are held on the mini-pitches. They work 
closely with local schools and are proving an excellent way to profiling the 
pitches and clubhouse. 
 
Dartford Football Club is currently in discussions with interested parties, 
concerning development of training sessions on the pitches during the 
daytime.  
 
Dartford Football Club Grounds Team continues to maintain the mini pitches 
to a good standard. Additional security has been added to the entrance gates 
to resolve unauthorised usage of the pitches. New nets and fixings, additional 
signage and a litter bin are on order to maintain the quality of the facility.  
 
3.4 Cost to the Council 
 
In 2008/9 it cost the Council £158,000 to operate Princes Park. The grant 
payable to Dartford Football Club in 2013/14 was £110,000. The new 
agreement will see this reducing to £90,000 for 2015/16.  
 
The net income from the mini pitches has improved year on year and the 
figure for the 2014/15 past three quarters is £24,928.66 compared with the 
same period in 2013/14 of £20,389.58. 
 
3.5 Facility 
 
There have been some ongoing issues concerning the functioning of the roof 
at the stadium, but the current situation is that the contractor has accepted 
liability. A specification has been agreed by the Council and we are awaiting 
the final legal agreement and timescales. 
 
4   Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
Not applicable 
 
5 Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None specifically from this report 

Legal Implications None specifically from this report 

Staffing Implications None 

Agenda Item 10Page 37



 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

17 FEBRUARY 2015  
 

Administrative Implications None  

Risk Assessment None specifically from this report 

 
 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable 
 
7. Appendices 
 
 None 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section 
and 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
  Stephen Jefferson 

 
Policy & 
Corporate 
Support 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 10 Page 38



 
CABINET 

4 DECEMBER 2014 

 

DARTFORD MARSHES 

 

Littlebrook 

 
1. Summary 
 

1.1 To advise Members of a study that has been carried out into future 
maintenance and enhancement options for the Dartford Marshes and to seek 
approval for various works to be carried out. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1  That Members note the content of this report and approve the implementation 

of the works as set out in para 3.5 of the report. 

2.2  That Members note the budget situation stated in para 3.6 of the report and 
approve the proposal for how the works will be funded. 

2.3    That Members authorise officers to seek contributions and input from other 
interested parties for these and other related works. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. The Dartford Marshes lie in the North West corner of the Borough with 
boundaries along Bob Dunn Way, the River Darent, the Thames and 
the Bridge development. The area has a number of landowners; the 
Council owns the largest part which stretches from Binnie Road to the 
Thames. The Council’s land is in two distinct and interesting parts; the 
south part is dry rough grassland (the part formerly occupied by the 
Joyce Green Hospital) and the part to the north and east is wet 
grassland (the actual marsh). These areas support a large and diverse 
range of plants and wildlife, such as bees, birds and water-voles. 

3.2. The Marshes area is subject to a variety of uses, some authorised, 
some not. Part of the land is used by a gun club and another part is 
used by a motorbike scrambling club. Joyce Green Farm covers a 
large area. There is an old orchard and an old disused allotment on 
site. The area suffers from a general lack of management and care and 
certain parts are often flytipped and littered. Some unauthorised 
motorbike and quad-bike usage regularly occurs. Despite this, many 
people already walk or cycle the area, especially the old cobbled path 
out to the Thames and the Thames foreshore itself. Precise numbers of 
users are not known and although this varies according to the time of 
year, the number would appear to be quite high and include local 
people and those who travel to get there. 

3.3. The Marshes have been subject to a variety of works in recent times 
including the restoration of the cobbled path, the removal of scrub and 
the return of some areas to grazing land. These works have been 
carried out as individual projects. There has been no real maintenance 

Agenda Item 11Page 39



 

CABINET 

4 DECEMBER 2014 

 
or development plan for the part owned by the Council and the area 
has suffered from a lack of continuity. 

3.4. In 2013, the Council commissioned Martin Hall (the former director of 
Greening the Gateway Kent and Medway) to carry out a study into The 
Marshes. His brief was to revisit its recent history, evaluate its current 
condition and develop deliverable land management options. As part of 
this work he made contact with the other landowners and other 
interested parties such as the Environment Agency, Kent County 
Council, Kent Wildlife Trust and The Land Trust and Buglife. A number 
of these expressed the wish to work with the Council or thought that 
evidence of the Council taking positive action would motivate them to 
do the same. Martin Hall recently completed his work.   

3.5. The initial works recommended from the study are the formation of a 
number of pathways of varying widths, the construction of a number of 
raised viewing mounds, the formation of glade areas for informal 
activities, the removal of rubbish and dumping, the provision of signage 
and the formation of better boundaries. These works will all show a 
better managed and looked after site and make it more welcoming and 
accessible. These works will be carried out on Council owned land 
only. Other works such as the restoration of the orchard and the 
allotments and the creation of a car park may become possible in time. 

3.6. It is estimated that there will be a one-off cost of approximately £50,000 
in the first year followed by costs of £20,000 per annum for on-going 
maintenance. The Identified Initiative Reserve will be used to fund the 
initial works and maintenance costs for an initial period of three years. 
It should be possible to reduce the on-going costs by the use of 
volunteers from the North West Kent Countryside Partnership or the 
Bridge or a tenant farmer. 

3.7. Members will be aware of the issue with the Eagles Road cliff. If the 
cliff is cut back it will be necessary to arrange the disposal of a large 
quantity of chalk. This chalk could be used to form an elevated 
landscape feature (effectively a shallow hill) on the dry part of the 
marshes primarily for use as a viewing platform, which would also have 
the effect of diversifying the habitats found on site. The Environment 
Agency has provisionally given its approval to this. Using the chalk in 
this way could save the Council approximately £50,000 in waste 
disposal costs. 

3.8. Under the England Biodiversity Strategy, the Environment Agency is 
tasked with the enhancement of fresh water grazing marsh. The 
Agency has expressed an interest in working with the Council and 
investing £180,000 in the area over four years. 

3.9. The Dartford Marshes area is part of a larger area included within the 
Darent Valley Landscape Partnership Scheme. The Kent Downs AONB 
has very recently been awarded a grant of £2.23m for the 

Agenda Item 11 Page 40



 

CABINET 

4 DECEMBER 2014 

 
enhancement of the larger area and the Marshes will benefit from 
some of this. 

3.10. Discussions are being held regarding the construction of a bridge 
across the River Darent to enable the continuation of the cycle route 
along the south of the Thames which forms the north of the Marshes. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

The enhancement of the Dartford Marshes would contribute to the 
Council’s wider strategic aims of providing for a rich and varied quality 
of life, creating a safer borough and promoting an environment which is 
attractive. 

  
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications As stated in paragraph 3.6 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None  

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 

  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
7. Appendices 
 

None. 
. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
  Dave Thomas 

(01322) 34273 
Waste and 
Parks 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 11Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
17 February 2015 

 
 

 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2015-16 
 

 
1. Summary 

 
To identify items for inclusion in the Committee’s Work Programme for the 
2015 – 16 municipal year and allocate a timeframe accordingly. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the Committee agrees the proposed standard items as set out in the draft 
Work Plan (attached at Appendix A) and identifies further topics for inclusion in 
the Work Programme for 2015-16. 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
 
 3.1 The Scrutiny Committee’s Terms of Reference make provision for the 

Committee to approve an Annual Scrutiny Work Programme. 
 

 3.2 The Committee is responsible for setting its own Work Programme   
and in doing so, the Committee will take into account the minority 
interest views held by Members on the Committee. 
 

 3.3 The programme should ensure that there is efficient use of the 
Committee’s time and that the potential for duplication of effort is 
minimised, especially with regard to the remits of the Crime and 
Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) and the Policy Overview Committees. 
 

 3.4 In considering whether a particular topic or function should be 
included in the Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme, Members 
need to be mindful of the following: 
 

(1) that the primary role of the Committee is to scrutinise 
decisions of the Cabinet that have either been taken or which are 
included in the Regulation 9 Notices for future consideration by 
Cabinet; 
 
(2) that although the nature of the scrutiny will generally decide 
who participates in the discussion, inviting participation by other 
councils to give their experiences is not a scrutiny function, but 
one for the Policy Overview Committee, which undertakes the 
overview function to better inform future policy options; 
 
(3) that discussions on policy statements fall to the Policy 
Overview Committee, with the overview function, not the Scrutiny 
Committee; and  

Agenda Item 12Page 43



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
29April 2014 

 
 

  

 
(4) that matters relating to crime and disorder, including anti-
social behaviour (ASB) and Community Safety, fall within the 
remit of the Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) 
Committee. 

 
 3.5 Members are asked to suggest possible topics / areas for inclusion in 

the Committee’s Work Programme for 2015-16 as set out in the draft 
Work Plan at Appendix A. The Work Plan will be reviewed at each 
meeting during the forthcoming municipal cycle to allow new items to 
be added or the timing of existing items altered. The Work Plan will be 
supplemented through the established Draw-Down process. 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Not applicable. 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 

 
6. Appendices 
 

Appendix A- draft  Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2015-16 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 
 

Date File 
Ref 

Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 February 
2015 

 David Hook 
Member Services  
(01322 343276) 

Member 
Services 
MD 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 12 Page 44



APPENDIX A 
 

 

 
DRAFT SCRUTINY WORK PLAN 2015-16 

 

7 July 2015 10 November 2015 2 February 2016 19 April 2016 

Orchard Theatre Annual 
Report 2014- 15  

 
Draw-Down(s) – t.b.c. 

Orchard Theatre Accounts 2014-
2015  

Princes Park Annual Update  

Draw-Down(s) – t.b.c.  
 
Review Work Plan 2015-16 

 
Draw-Down(s) – t.b.c. 
 

 
Draw-Down(s) – t.b.c. 

Scrutiny Committee Annual 
Report 2014 – 2015 

 

 
Review Work Plan 2015-16 

 
Consider Work Programme 
for 2016-17 

 
Review Work Plan 2015-16 

 

 
 

 

  

  

A
genda Item

 12
P

age 45



P
age 46

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2014
	6 Regulation 9 Notice
	9 Orchard Theatre Accounts 2013-14 Financial Year
	10 Princess Park Annual Update
	11 Dartford Marshes
	12 Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015-16
	Scrutiny Committee WorkPlan 2015-16 Appendix A


